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PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 61% Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Friday,
October 18, 2024 at the registered office of the company at Pakistan PVC Limited, Shaffiabad, Gharo,
District Thatta at 9.00 a.m. to transact the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the 60" Annual General Meeting of the company held on October 20,
2023.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year ended June 30,
2024 together with the reports of the Director's and Auditors' thereon.

3. To appoint auditors of the company for the year ending June 30,2025 and fix their remuneration.

To elect new Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 for the period of three years commencing from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting, in place of the following retiring Directors :-

1. Mr. Arif Shaffi 2. Mr. Abdullah Shaffi 3. Mrs. Saira Shaffi
4. Mr. Mohammed Shaffi 5. Mr. Mohammad Igbal 6.  Mr. Arshad Javaid
7. Mr. Adeel Shaffi

Special Business:

To approve the remuneration package for the chief executive and two full time working directors of
the company as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company

“Resolved that the Chief Executive is allowed to receive gross annual remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million
alongwith free use of company car, telephone, medical and other benefits as per company's
regulations from time to time.

“Further Resolved that two full time working directors are allowed to receive gross annual
remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million alongwith free use of company car, telephone, medical and other
benefits as per company's regulations from time to time.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
1. To transact any other business of the company with the permission of the chair.

Islamabad: September 21, 2024 By Order of the Board

(ADEEL SHAFFI)
Company Secretary
Notes:

1. The number of Directors for election has been fixed by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on, September 21, 2024, at seven. All the retiring Directors shall eligible for re-election for
the next term. Any person whether he is retiring Director or otherwise, who seeks to contest
election, shall file with the Company at its Registered Office, not later than fourteen clear days
before the date of the above Annual General Meeting, the following:

(a) His/her folio No./CDC Investors Account No./CDC Participant No./Sub-Account No; (b) a
legible attested copy of his/her CNIC; (c) Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for
the election of Directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act, 2017; (d) Consent to
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11.

act as Director on Form-28; (e) Detailed profile along with Office Address for placement on the
Company’s website (f) Declaration in respect of being compliant with the requirements of the
Code of Corporate Governance and eligibility criteria as set out in the Companies Act, 2017 to act
as a Director of the listed Company.

Share transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from October 12, 2024 to October 18,
2024 (both days inclusive)

A member entitled to attend and vote in the meeting is authorized to appoint any other person a
proxy to attend, speak and vote for him or her.

Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this meeting must bring his/her
original NIC with him/her to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of shareholders
attested NIC must be attached with the proxy form and shall authenticate his/her identity by
showing his/her original National Identity Card (NIC) or passport at the time of attending the
meeting. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for
such purpose.

In order to valid, an instrument of proxy and the power of Attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarized certified copy of such power or Authority, must be
reached at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 72 hours before the time of the
Meeting.

As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 enacting from May 31, 2017, SECP Circular No.
18/2017, a listed company, is required to pay cash dividend to shareholders ONLY through
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.

Therefore In compliance with the said law, in order to receive your future dividends directly in
your bank account, you are required to provide the information mentioned on the Form placed on
the Company’s website www.pakistanpvc.com and send the same to your brokers/Central
Depository Company Ltd., if the shares are held in the electronic form or to the Company’s Share
Registrar if shares are held in paper certificates form. The Company’s Share Registrar’s address
in M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1 — K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore,
Tele# 042 — 3591 6714 or email at corplink786@gmail.com.

Members are requested to provide by mail or fax, to the Company’s Share Registrar’s address in
M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1 — K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, Tele#
042 — 3591 6714 or email at corplink786@gmail.com., photocopy of their valid CNIC or passport
(in case of foreigner), unless it has been provided earlier, enabling the Company to Comply with
relevant laws.

Financial statements have been placed on Company’s website at www.pakistanpvc.com.

The shareholders who wish to attend the Annual General Meeting are requested to get themselves
registered by sending their particulars at the designated email address pakpvc.CG@shavyl.com,
giving particulars as per below table by the close of business hours (5:00 PM) on October 14,
2024.

Name of CNIC No./ NTN Participant ID/Folio Cell No | Email address
Shareholder NO. No.

The webinar link would be emailed to the registered shareholders/proxies who have provided all
the requested information.

Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 is being sent to the members of the
Company separately.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3)OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted in the
Annual General Meeting to be held on October 18, 2024.


mailto:corplink786@gmail.com
http://www.pakistanpvc.com/

The present Chief Executive is drawing remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million per annum and two Directors
are drawing Rs.1.5 million along with free use of company car, telephone, medical and other benefits
as per company's regulations from time to time. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on
September 21, 2024, has recommended that Chief Executive be allowed to receive gross annual
remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million along with free use of company car, telephone, medical and other
benefits as per company's regulations from time to time.

Two full time working directors are allowed to receive gross annual remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million
along with free use of company car, telephone, medical and other benefits as per company's
regulations from time to time.

As the matter requires ratification by the members, the following resolutions shall be considered for
approval as Special Resolution:

“Resolved that the Chief Executive is allowed to receive gross annual remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million
along with free use of company car, telephone, medical and other benefits as per company's
regulations from time to time.”

“Further Resolved that two full time working directors are allowed to receive gross annual
remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million along with free use of company car, telephone, medical and other
benefits as per company's regulations from time to time.”

The Chief Executive and two Directors are interested in this matter to the extent of the remuneration
payable.
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OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIC PLANNING

SHAVYL GROUP VISION
“Shavyl to be a global group of companies recognized for a range of quality products”.

MISSION STATEMENT

“To be market leader in petrochemicals, building company’s image through innovation and
competitiveness, ensuring satisfaction to customers and stakeholders and to fulfill social
obligations”.

OBJECTIVES
Constantly endeavor to be market leaders in terms of market share and technology pacesetters
in areas of operations and to continuously improve efficiency and competitive strength.

To offer customers quality products and support services at competitive prices and to their
satisfaction.

By continuously improving performance, aim to generate earnings sufficient to ensure a
secure future for the Company and to protect and increase shareholders’ return.

To enhance creativity and job satisfaction, provide employees opportunity for personal
development.

Be an integral part of national economy with a strong sense of responsibility to society and
the environment.

STRATEGIC PLANNING
To maintain a strong R&D department for the development of new and the up gradation of

our own technology. To develop in-house know how for a world scale petrochemical
complex.
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STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

The Company’s Ethics and Business Practices conform to the Shavyl Group Vision and the
Company’s Mission Statement.

THE PURPOSE AND VALUES OF BUSINESS

Manufacturers of PVC Resins and its down stream products that conform to the Specified
Standards, saving of foreign exchange and developing technical and engineering capabilities
in the country.

EMPLOYEES

Recruitment of personnel on merit offering training and career development, equal
opportunities of growth, no discrimination or harassment and reward for achievements.
Improved working conditions, ensuring safety, security and health.

Employees shall not use Company information and assets for their personal advantage.
Conflict of interest shall be avoided and disclosed where it exists and guidance sought.

CUSTOMER RELATION
Ensure customer satisfaction by providing quality products at competitive prices with
warranty coverage and ensuring after sale service.

SHAREHOLDERS, FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS & CREDITORS
Protection of investment made in the Company and proper return on money lent/invested. A
commitment to accurate and timely communication on achievements and prospects.

SUPPLIERS
Prompt settling of bills. Co-operation to achieve quality and efficiency. No bribery or excess
hospitality accepted or given.

SOCIETY / COMMUNITY

Compliance with the spirit of laws. Timely payment of all Government taxes and dues.
Eliminate the release of substance that may cause environmental damage. Financial
assistance for promoting education and social activities including games and donation/charity
to deserving.

GENERAL

The Company shall neither support any political party nor contribute funds to groups or
associations whose activities prompt political interest. The Company shall promote its
legitimate business interest through trade associations.

IMPLEMENTATION
Company Board to ensure implementation of these codes, regular monitoring, and review for

modification/amendment where necessary.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT:

The Board of Directors (the Board) of Pakistan PVC Limited (PPVC) has performed their
duties diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders of the Company and has
managed the affairs of the Company in an effective and efficient manner. The Board has
exercised its powers and has performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act 2017
(previously Companies Ordinance 1984) and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017.

Further, the Board during the year ended 30 June 2024 played an effective role in managing
the affairs of the Company and achieving its objectives in the following manner;

» The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of Executives, non-executive
and independent directors on the Board and its committees as required under the Code and
that members of the Board and its respective committees has adequate skill, experience and
knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company;

« The Board has developed and put in place a formal and effective mechanism for an annual
evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors. On
the basis of the feedback received through this mechanism overall performance of the Board
has been found to be Good and effective;

* The Board has formed an Audit and HRR Committees and has approved their respective
terms of references and has assigned adequate resources so that the committees perform their
responsibilities diligently;

* The Board has ensured that one Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors
Training Program due to their qualification. Six Directors has taken certification under the
Directors Training Program;

* The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and its committee were held with the
requisite quorum and that the minutes of all the meetings (including committees) are
appropriately recorded and maintained;

* The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and
corporate values adhered through the Company and have developed significant policies for
smooth functioning;

» All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its
committees to strengthen and formalize the corporate decision making process;

» The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place;

* The Board has prepared and approved the Director’s report and has ensured that the
directors’ report is published with the quarterly and annual financial statement of the
Company and the content of the directors’ report are in accordance with the requirement of
applicable laws and regulations;

* The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely
manner and the Board members are kept abreast of developments between meetings;

* The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulation applicable on the Company.

Based on aforementioned it can reasonably be stated that Board of Pakistan PVC Limited has
played instrumental role in ensuring that corporate objectives are achieved in line with the
expectation of shareholders and other important stakeholders.
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DIRECTOR'’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of my colleagues on the Board, | welcome you to the 61* Annual General Meeting of the
Company and present the audited accounts for the year ended June 30, 2024 along with the auditors’
report thereon.

This year has been a tumultuous one so far with various factors giving rise to new challenges. Sales
of the Company have decreased by (22.07) % to Rs. 8,767,775 as compared to Rs. 11,251,064 in the
comparable previous twelve months. Future outlook is uncertain and as we speak, it is not possible to
determine when this global pandemic will reach its end.

During the period under review Gharo Plant remains closed and there was no production. The
production of PVC Pipes & Fittings at Islamabad increased during the year.

Sales during the year under review decreased to Rs. 8.768 million as compared to Rs. 11.251 million
of the same period last year and net loss during the year was Rs. 4.823 million as compared to a net
profit of Rs. 88.714 million during the previous year. The production of PVC Pipes at Islamabad
factory was 133,462 meters as against 287,973 meters last year. Excess capacity of this water
treatment plant was used to make Mineral Water. Sale of Mineral Water was 41,200 Gallons as
against 49,884 Gallons. Work of installation of Machinery of Pipe Plant shifted from Gharo to
Islamabad has delayed due to non-availability of funds.

1. AUDITORS’ RESERVATION OF GOING CONCERN

The auditors have qualified their opinion, since your company has prepared the accounts on
the going concern basis. The reason given in their qualification is the continued losses
sustained by your company, no improvement/result of the efforts made by the management
for obtaining additional capital. The case for the revival of your company remains under
active consideration with the Committee for Revival of Sick Industrial Units set up by the
Finance Division, Government of Pakistan.

As reported earlier that due to non-availability of financial limits from the banks,
discontinuation of electricity by KESC for Gharo plant, management of your company could
not start the production at Gharo. As reported in earlier years | repeat my statement that
unless Gharo plant goes into operation, no fruitful results could be seen.

2. AUDITORS' RESERVATION ABOUT DIRECT CONFIRMATON
As regards confirmations from the lenders of long term loans the company had dispatched
the balance confirmation letters several times to the lenders of long term loans.

3. AUDITORS' RESERVATION ABOUT LONG OUTSTANDING BALANCES
As regards balances of very long outstanding balances of Creditors, Advances from
Customers and Accrued liability we have to state that these balances are appearing in the
company's accounts since last many years and as regards confirmations from the Trade and
other payables in respect of Accrued liability the company had dispatched the balance
confirmation letters to the Trade and Other payables in respect of Accrued liability and we
understand that an overall majority of these have been responded too.

Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Company have been audited by Messrs. Mushtag & Company.,
Chartered Accountants, the auditors, with some qualification.

Dividend
Due to poor financial result and huge accumulated losses, the Directors of your company have
decided to pass over the Dividend.

Auditors

The Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of Messer's Mushtag & Company,
Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company for the ensuing year.

The present auditors M/s Mushtag & Company, Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors being
eligible have offered themselves for reappointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending
June 30, 2024.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion
The Company is dedicated to fostering a diverse, equitable, inclusive, and supportive environment
where all individuals are valued and respected. There is no discrimination of caste, religion, color,
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marital status or gender. Our focus is on principles of Equal Opportunity Employer and fostering an
inclusive workplace that reflects gender diversity and equality.

Gender Pay Gap

The Company regularly undertakes an internal analysis to check whether gender pay parity is aligned
based on cadres, levels and comparable positions, and makes adjustments to ensure that women are
paid on average the same as men in the same cadres. As such, the Company believes that there is
no significant disparity between what women and men are paid at comparable cadres and levels.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company strongly believes that improving its environmental and social performance is inevitable
for its financial success. The Company has continued with CSR program with a focus on health
support, education programs, energy conservation, environmental protection measures, community
welfare schemes, occupational safety & health and business ethics.

The Company in its continuous efforts to positively impact the local communities that reside near our
plants has formulated policies for social development that are based on the following guiding
principles:

¢ Adopt an approach that aims at achieving a greater balance between social development and
economic development.

¢ Adopt new measures to accelerate and ensure the basic needs of the local population.

o Work towards elimination of all barriers for the social inclusion of disadvantaged groups such
as the poor and the disabled.

e Give unfailing attention to children for in their hands lies the country’s future. It is for their
sake that health, education and environment get topmaost priority in our programs.

The Company works closely with Special Olympics Pakistan to support their programs for
rehabilitation of mentally handy capped children.
The main emphasis of our CSR is in District Thatta and Federal Capital Islamabad.

Health
As a Company, we are not only committed to compliance with legal norms but endeavor to voluntarily
go beyond that and provide quality healthcare facilities in the regions around our plants.

Education

Education is a basic tool to bring development to an area and its people. We aim to create an
awareness pool of human resource both within and across our area of operations. We are committed
to bridging the digital divide between the haves and have-nots in educational infrastructure and
facilities. The Company is involved in activities that have changed the lives of the people residing the
close proximity to our plants. Education is the main thrust of these activities.

Energy Conservation Measures
Energy conservation measures include usage of energy savers and LED lights all around the plant
and shutting down auxiliaries and equipment wherever possible.

Occupational Health, Safety and Environment

The Company is committed to health, safety and environment. Potential risks are systematically
identified and managed in a manner that any undesirable damage is minimized. HSE signs are
displayed at key locations are their implementation is ensured.

Business Ethics

The Company’s Code of Business Ethics sets the minimum standards expected of the entire Team
and is part of the Corporate Governance framework approved by the Board. The conduct of business
should above all be characterized by honesty and integrity. Unethical practices of any sort are not to
find their way into our business. All employees are expected to promote the Company’s best interest
whilst maintaining the highest standard of personal integrity and business practices. All employees
must act at all times in the interest of Company’s shareholders and must abide by the Company’s
stated standards of environmental safety and management practices. No employee shall ever commit
an illegal or an unethical act, or instruct and encourage another employee to do so. The laws and
regulations of the country should always be observed.

The Company has communicated the code to all its employees.
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FINANCIAL PROFORMANCE

Year 2024 2023
Turnover 8.768 11.251
Operating Costs 32.899 30.962
Net Profit/(Loss) (4.823) 88.714
Earnings per share (Rs.) (0.32) 5.93

Financial Risk
The financial risk management is disclosed in note 32 of the unconsolidated financial statements of
the Company.

Corporate & Financial Reporting Framework

The Directors are pleased to confirm compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
of the Securities & Exchange Commission Pakistan (SECP) and the Code of Corporate Governance
for the following:

a. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly portray its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in its equity;

b. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained,;

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. IFRS as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements and any
departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed; and

e. There are no doubts in the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Key financial data (unconsolidated) of last six years is as follows:

(Rs.000)
2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21  2019-20 2018-19
TURNOVER 8,768 11,251 12,048 9,640 5,515 8,888
NET PROFIT (4,823) 88.714  (10,281) (11,559) (15,759) (17,479)
EUQSEHOLDERS (25.379) 20.566  (209,871) (199,591) 188,032 172,273
EARNING PER SHARE  (0.32) 5.93 (0.69) (0.77) (117) (1.17)

Adegquacy of Internal Financial Controls
Directors confirm compliance with highest standard of Corporate Governance and that the internal
controls are sound in design and have been effectively implemented and monitored.

STATEMENTS OF CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

1. The financial statements, prepared by the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

6. There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern as
have been fully explained in Note no.1 of the Notes to the Accounts.
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There has been no material departure from the best practices of the corporate governance,
as detailed in the listing regulations.
Key operating and financial data for last six years in summarized form is given on page 17.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD
1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

a. Male: 6
b. Female: 1
2. The composition of board is as follows:
Category Name

Independent Directors Arshad Javaid
Mohammad Igbal

Non-executive Directors Abdullah Shaffi
Mohammad Shaffi

Executive Directors Arif Shaffi - CEO
Adeel Shaffi

Female Non-Executive Director Saira Shaffi - Chairman

BOARD MEETING
During the year four board meetings were held and the attendance of the concerned Directors
during their tenure on the Board was as follows:

Total Number Board Audit H.R.
Name of Director of Meetings ~ Meetings Committee  Committee
Attended Meetings Meetings
Attended Attended
Mr. Arif Shaffi 4 4 N/A N/A
Mr. Mohammad Igbal 4 4 4 1
Mrs. Saira Shaffi 4 4 N/A N/A
Mr. Mohammad Shaffi 4 4 4 1
Mr. Arshad Javaid 4 4 4 1
Mr. Adeel Shaffi 4 4 N/A N/A
Mr. Abdullah Shaffi 4 4 N/A N/A

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
In compliance with the code of corporate governance the Company has established an Audit
Committee comprising of the following members:-

Mr. Arshad Javaid Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Igbal Member
Mr. Mohammad Shaffi Member

HUMAN RESOURCES & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
In compliance with the code of corporate governance the Company has established a Human
Resources & Remuneration Committee comprising of the following members:-

Mr. Arshad Javaid Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Igbal Member
Mr. Mohammad Shaffi Member

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The Chief Executive is allowed to receive gross annual remuneration of Rs. 1.5 million
alongwith free use of company car, telephone, medical and other benefits as per company's
regulations from time to time.

Two full time working directors are allowed to receive gross annual remuneration of Rs. 1.5
million alongwith free use of company car, telephone, medical and other benefits as per
company's regulations from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
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Of the seven Directors, 1 has been exempted from the Corporate governance Leadership
Skills (CGLS) training based on their experience as Director on the Board of Listed
Companies. A total of 6 Directors are certified in Directors Training Program.

10. The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is
given on Page 56 — 58.

11. No trades in the shares of the Company during the year were carried out by the Director,
CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children.

Islamabad: September 21, 2024 On behalf of the Board of Directors

ARIF SHAFFI — Chief Executive MOHAMMAD SHAFFI| — Director.

Statement of Compliance With The Best Practice On Transfer Pricing

The Company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained in the listing
regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchanges.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

ARIF SHAFFI — Chief Executive MOHAMMAD SHAFFI — Director ~ Dated: September 21, 2024
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Year 2024 2023

Turnover 8.768 11.251

Operating Costs 32.899 30.962
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Net Profit/(Loss) (4.823) 88.714
Earnings per share (Rs.) (0.32) 5.93
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23
TURNOVER 8,768 11,251 12,048 9,640 5,515 8,888
NET PROFIT (4,823) 88.714 (10,281) (11,559) (15,759) (17,479)
SHAREHOLDERS (25.379) 20.566 (209,871) (199,591) 188,032 172,273
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Six Years at a Glance

TURNOVER
GROSS PROFIT
NET PROFIT

TAXATION

SHARE CAPITAL FUND
SHAREHOLDERS FUND
GROSS PROFIT %

NET PROFIT %
TAXATION %

EARMING PER. SHARE
DIVIDEMND %

BOMUS %

23

(Rs.000)
202324 202223 202122 202021 201920 201819
8,768 11,251 12,048 9,640 5,515 8,888
(24,132) (19.711)  (14.557)  (14.796)  (16.038)  (16.079)
(4.823) 88714  (10.281)  (11.559)  (15.759)  (17.479)
4139 11.868 5.401 4582 3,901 3.258
149 580 149580 149580  149.580 149580 149,580
25379 20566  209.871  199.591  188.032  172.273
(275.228) (0.175) (121) (153) (291) (181)
(55.01) 0.79 (85) (120) (286) (197)
47.21 0.11 45 48 71 37
(0.32) 5.93 (0.69) (0.77) (1.17) (1.17)




FINANCIAL PROFORMANCE OF PAKISTAN PVC LIMITD

Year 2024 2023
Earnings per Share 0.32 5.93
P/E Ratio 23.26 0.71
Break Up Value
(Including Revaluation Surplus) (1.70) (1.37)
Break Up Value
(Excluding Revaluation Surplus) (18.10) (18.21)

Dividend Payout Ratio
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Statement of Compliance

with the Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Pakistan PVC Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the
Regulations”) in the following manner.

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
a. Male: 6
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

Category Name
Independent Directors Arshad Javaid
Mohammad Igbal
Non-executive Directors Abdullah Shaffi
Mohammad Shaffi
Executive Directors Arif Shaffi - CEO
Adeel Shaffi
Female Non-Executive Director Saira Shaffi - Chairman

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more
than seven listed companies, including this company (excluding the listed
subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended
has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has
complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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9. The Board remained fully compliant with the provision with regard to their
directors’ training program. Out of total of seven directors, one directors is exempt
from training program and six has completed training during the year 2014, 2019 and
2023.

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
a) Audit Committee (Name of members and Chairman)

Mr. Arshad Javaid Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Igbal Member
Mr. Mohammad Shaffi Member
b) HR and Remuneration Committee (Name of members and Chairman)
Mr. Arshad Javaid Chairman
Mr. Mohammad Igbal Member
Mr. Mohammad Shaffi Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
documented and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were
as per following:

a) Audit Committee: Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: Yearly

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies
and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given
a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these
regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of
the Regulations have been complied with.
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19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6,
7, 8,27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

S. Requirement Explanation for Non-Compliance | Regulation

No. No.

1 Representation of Minority Shareholder: No one has intended to contest 5
The minority members as a class shall be | election as director representing
facilitated by the Board to contest election | minority shareholders.
of directors by proxy solicitation.

2 Responsibilities of the Board and its | Non-mandatory provisions of the 10 (1)
members: CCG Regulations are partially
Adoption of the corporate governance | complied.
practices.

3 Nomination Committee: Currently, the Board has not 29 (1)
The Board may constitute a separate | constituted a separate Nomination
committee, designated as the nomination | Committee and the functions are
committee, of such number and class of | being performed by the Human
directors, as it may deem appropriate in its | Resource & Remuneration
circumstances. Committee.

4 Risk Management Committee: Currently, the Board has not 30 (2)

The Board may constitute the risk
management committee, of such number
and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances, to carry
out a review of effectiveness of risk
management procedure and present a
report to the Board.

constituted a Risk Management
Committee and the senior officers
of the Company perform requisite
functions and apprise the Board
accordingly.

Signature (s)

Laa &.Lw&%

(Saira Shaffi)
Chairman
September 21, 2024

(Arif Shaffi)
CEO

September 21, 2024




] 28

MUSHTAQ & CO. TN

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS lezding 6dge aiance

Member firm

Independent Auditor’s Review Report

To the members of Pakistan PVC Limited on the Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Pakistan PVC Limited
for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal centrol covers all risks and controls
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

/

N ushiesy £

Place: Lahore ' MUSHTAQ & CO
Dated: 23-Sep-24 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR202410724fm6hynArC Engagement Partner:

Nouman Arshad, ACA
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Pakistan PVC Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Pakistan PVC Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024 and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies
information and other explanatory information.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the Company. Because of
the significance of the matters described in Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these financial statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

(a) The Company ceased the production at Gharo Plant since 1995. The production at Islamabad
Plant continues. As stated in the note 2.2 to the financial statements, the company had earned a
Profit/(Loss) for the year ended June 30, 2024 of Rupees (4.823) million (June 30, 2023:
Rupees (88.714 million) and as of that date, reported accumulated loss of Rs. 420.320 million
as at June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023 : Rs. 421.930 million) against the issued, subscribed and
paid up capital of Rs. 149.580 million (June 30, 2023 : Rs. 149.580 million) turning
shareholders' equity to a negative balance of Rs. 25.379 million (June 30, 2023 : Rs. 20.556
million). The current liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs. 279.588 million (June 30, 2023
: Rs. 281.490 million). Further the company has not been able to obtain enough finance to revive
its operations. These circumstances give rise to significant uncertainty as to the ability of the
company to continue operations as going concern in the foreseeable future. However, these
financial statements do not include any adjustment relating to the recoverability and
classification of recorded assets and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should
the company be unable to continue as a going concern. The management has not prepared cash
flow projections and future plan to revive the operation of Gharo plant closed since 1995.

(b) No confirmation/bank statement was received to verify the correctness of balance of long-term
loan payable to Privatization Commission of Pakistan, reflected under current portion of long-
term loans, in note 9 of these financial statements, amounting to Rs. 32.991 million and markup
accrued thereon amounting to Rs. 113.911 million in note 11 of the financial statements.

(c) No confirmation was received to verify the amount included in trade and other payables in
respect of liability towards Privatization Commission, Finance Division, amounted to Rs.

/ 10,000,000, in note 10.4 of these financial statements
Head Office Islamabad Office Lahore Office:
407, Commerce Centre 407, Second Floor 19-B, Block G.
Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi Millennium Heights Gulberg-111, Lahore
Tel: 021-32638521-3 F-11/1, Islamabad Tel: 042-35858624-6

Email: infol@mushtagandco.com E-mail: audit.|hr@mushtagandco.com
audit khi@mushtagandco.com
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(d) We do not concur with the accounting treatment of leasehold land referred in note 15.6 of these
financial statements being violation of the requirements of International Accounting Standards
(IAS 40) “Investment Property”

(e) As more fully explained in note 14.2 of these financial statements, the impact on the financial
statements of the disputed CDA plot of land at Islamabad is not determinable.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or errcr.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we furtlier report that in our opinion:

a) Except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our
report, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX 0f 2017);

b) Except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our
report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 0f 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

Lahore Office:

19-B, Block G.

Gulberg-111, Lahore

Tel: 042-35858624-6

E-mail: audit.Ihr@mushtagandco.com

Head Office Islamabad Office
407, Commerce Centre, 407, Second Floor
Hasrat Mohani Road. Karachi Millennium Heights.
Tel: 021-32638521-3 F-11/1, Islamabad
Email: info@mushtagandco.com

audit khi@mushtagandco.com
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¢) Except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our
report, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nouman Arshad,

/  ACA.

Muchkey € co-fd
MUSHTAQ & CO. \\»d =/
Chartered Accountants .
Lahore.

Dated: 23-Sep-24

UDIN: AR202410724g41Uvpaot

Head Office: Islamabad Office Lahore Office:

107, Commerce Centre, 407, Second Floor 19-B, Block G.

Hasrat \1* hani R“ld Karachi Millennium Heights, Gulberg-111, Lahore

Tel: 021-32638521- F-11/1. Islamabad Tel: 042-35858624-6

Email: info@@ ”‘“"“ aqandco.com E-mail: audit.lhr@@mushtagandco.com

audit. khi@mushtagandco.com



Note
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital
15,000,000 (June 30, 2023 15,000,000)
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each.
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 7
Accumulated loss
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 8
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 9
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 10
Unclaimed Dividend
Accrued interest / markup 11
Short term borrowings 12
Current portion of long term financng 9
Provision for taxation - net 13

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14

PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
2024 2023
Rupees----mm-nnmmn
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
150,000,000 150,000,000
149,580,000 149,580,000 Long term investments
(420,320,294) (421,929,708)
245,361,165 251,793,507
(25,379,129) (20,556,201)
CURRENT ASSETS
91,559,820 57,843,207 Stock in trade
45,980 45,980 Trade debts
113,911,143 110,282,133 Loans and advances
46,398,605 46,846,622 Trade deposits
32,991,000 32,991,000 Other receivables
9,501,406 17,099,018 Tax refunds due from Government
Cash and bank balances
294,407,954 295,107,960
269,028,825 274,551,760

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(a2

Arif Shatfi
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mohammad Shaffi

DIRECTOR

2024 2023
Note Rupees--mmmmm-mmm-
15 253,392,590 260,395,096
16 815,845 538,377
17 1,773,295 1,587,302
18 4,142,353 3,419,606
19 1,096,832 923,606
20 100,000 100,000
21 839,766 720,183
22 6,836,730 6,792,701
23 31,414 74,889
14,820,390 13,618,287
269,028,825 274,551,760
- ,//v" 7
- 7
Asif Shaffi
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
2024 2023
Note Rupees-—--meeeee-
Sales 24 8,767,775 11,251,064
Cost of sales 25 (32,899,436) (30,961,898)
Gross Profit/ (loss) (24,131,661) (19,710,834)
Other income 26 32,463,021 135,565,925
Distribution cost 27 (6,267,851) (5,225,328)
Administrative expenses 28 (7,271,946) (6,407,740)
Finance costs 29 (3,644,340) (3,639,561)
Profit/ (loss) betore levies and income tax (8,852,777) 100,582,462
Levies 30 (109,597) (17,099,019)
Profit/ (loss) before income tax (8,962,374) 83,483,444
Income tax expense 31 4139 445 5,230,776
Profit/(loss) for the vear (4,822,928) 88,714,219
Earnings / (Loss) per share - basic and diluted 32 (0.32) 5,93

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

G
Mohammad Shaffi
DIRECTOR

Arif Shaffi
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Asif Shaffi
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note mrmrmrmmmms R U P @ @G mrmmmmmamaen
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (4,822,928) 88,714,219
Items that will not be subsequently
reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings - 100,600,985
Impact of deferred tax - -

- 100,600,985

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (4,822,928) 189,315,204

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(Shasm— —

Arif Shathi Mohammad Shatfi Asif Shatfi
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/ (loss) before levies and income tax

Adjustments for :
Depreciation

Accrued Interest
Markup Reversal-UBL
Finance cost

Rental income

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Tax refunds due from Government

Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other pavables

Net cash used in operation

Income tax paid
Finance cost paid
Gratuity Paid

Cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Rent received
Inwestment in term deposit certificates
Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term borrowings - net

Net cash generated from /(used) in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Arif Shatfi Mohammad Shaffi

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

2024 2023
Rupees
(8,852,777) 100,582,462
7,002,504 4,476,563
(77,468) (458,134)
= (106,963,836)
3,644,340 3,639,561
(32,385,553) (28,553,955)
(30,668,954) (26,867,339)
(185,993) (758,213)
(722,747) (269,492)
(173,226) (539,277)
265,276 (443,377)
3,287,809 142,656
2,471,119 (1,867,703)
(28,197,835) (28,735,042)
(3,877,067) (3,302,982)
(15,330 (10,551)
(3,892,397) (3,313,533)
(32,090,232) (32,048,575)
32,694,774 28,103,277
{200,000) -
32,494,774 28,103,277
(448,017) 3,789,728
(448,017) 3,789,728
(43,475) (155,570)
74,889 230,459
31,414 74,889
Asif Shaffi

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Issued, Revenue Reserve | Capital Reserve
subscribed Revaluation Total
) Accumulated loss
and paid up Surplus
Rl.ll.rLL.J

Balance as at July 1, 2022 149,580,000 (514,479,268) 155,027,863 (209,871,405)
Transfer from surplus on revaluation on
account of incremental depreciation - 3,835,341 (3,835,341) -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended June 30, 2023
Profit / (Loss ) for the vear ended June 30, 2023 - 88,714,219 - 88,714,219
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the
vear ended June 30, 2023 - - 100,600,985 100,600,985
Balance as at June 30, 2023 149,580,000 (421,929,708) 251,793,507 (20,556,201)
Transfer from surplus on revaluation on account of
incremental depreciation - 6,432,342 (6,432,342) -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended June 30, 2024
Profit / ( Loss ) tor the vear ended June 30, 2024 - (4,822,928) - (4,822,928)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the
vear ended June 30, 2024 - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2024 149,580,000 (420,320,294) 245,361,165 (25,379,129)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

; 4 ; <

Arif Shafti Mohammad Shafti Asif Shaffi
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINCNCIAL OFFICER
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PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
Pakistan PVC Limited (the company) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The company is engaged in production and sale of PVC resin, PVC pipes and fittings, PVC compound and caustic soda and to Lease (Land,
Building and Other Infrastructure). The company has ceased the production at Gharo since 1995. The registered office of the company is situated
at Shaffiabad, Gharo District, Thatta. The production in plant continies at Plot No. 1-4 & 31-A Sector I-9, Industrial Area, Islamabad. The
company has installed a water purification plant to process and sell mineral water in 2011 at Sector I-9, Industrial Area, Islamabad .

1.1 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the company's functional and presentation currency and figures are

rounded off to the nearest rupee.
2 BASIS OF PREFARATION
21 Statement of compliance

These finandial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financdial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and Provision of and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017. Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IERS, the provision of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Going Concern Assumption

The company had incurred a Profit/( Loss ) for the vear ended June 30, 2024 of Rupees (4.823) million (June 30, 2023: Rupees 88.714
million and as of that date, reported accumulated loss of Rs. 420.320 million as at June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023 : Rs. 421.930 million)
against the issued, subscribed and paid up capital of Rs. 149.580 million (June 30, 2023 : Rs. 149.580 million) turning shareholders’ equity
to a negative balance of Rs. 25.379 million (June 30, 2023 : Rs. 20.556 million). The current liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs.
279.588 million (Jume 30, 2023 : Rs. 281.490 million). Further the company has not been able to obtain enough finance to revive its
operations. These circumstances give rise to significant uncertainty as to the ability of the company to continue operations as going
concern in the foreseeable future. However, these finandal statements do not include any adjustment relating to the recoverability and
classification of recorded assets and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the company be unable to continue as a

going concermn.

23 Basis Of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. In these financial statements, except for cash flow

statements , all transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

3 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The preparation of finandal statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make judgments, estimates

and assumptions that atfect application of policies reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience, industry trends, legal and technical pronouncements and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised. Significant areas involving higher degree

of judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the finandal statements are as follows:

31 Provision for taxation

The company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the appellate authorities. Instances where the
company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the company considers that

its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent Liabilities.
32 Financial instruments

The fair value of finandial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques based on

asstumptions that are dependent on market conditions existing at balance sheet date.
33 Property, plant and equipment

The company reviews recoverable amount, useful life , residual value and possible impairment on an annual basis. Any changes, if

material in the estimates in future vears might affect the carrving amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a

corresponding affect on the deprediation charge and impairment. -
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4.1

4.2

34  Other areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

financial statements are as follows.

Provision for doubtful debts
Estimation of net realizable value
Computation of deferred taxation

H o " oun

Disclosure of contingencies

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not vet effective and have not been early adopted by the company:

Effective date (annual

reporting periods beginning
on or after)
IAS1 Presentation of financial statements (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments ) January 1, 2024
IERS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS 21 The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments) January 1, 2025
IFRS7 Finandial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2026
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2026
IFRS 9 Finandial Instruments — Classication and Measurement of Financial Instrument January 1, 2026

(Amendments)
The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and interpretations in future periods, will have no material impact
on the finandial statements other than in presentation / disclosures.

Further, the following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are
vet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Comumission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

Material Accounting Policy Information

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the vears presented unless otherwise stated.

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at cost / revalued amotint less accunuilated depreciation and impairment in

value, if any. Freehold land is stated at cost / revalued amount less any identified impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment except for freehold land is charged to profit & loss applving the reducing
balance method so as to write off historical cost [ revalued amount of an asset over its estimated useful life at the rates as disclosed in
property, plant and equipment note . The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each finandial vear end and adjusted if

impact on depreciation is significant.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrving amount or as a separate asset, as appropriated, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are

charged to Profit & Loss during the period in which thev are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or

disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if anv, are recognized as and when incurred.

Surplus arising on revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment is credited to surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, except to the extent that it reverses deficit on revaluation of the same assets previously recognized in profit or loss, in which
case the surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of deficit previously charged to profit & loss. Deficit on revaluation of an item of
property, plant and equipment is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any held in surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment relating to previous revaluation of that item. On subsequent sale or retirement of revalued item of
property, plant and equipment the attributable surplus remaining in the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
transferred directly to unappropriated profit. The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to the extent of incremental
depreciation charged on the related assets is transferred to unappropriated profit.
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5.2  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the entity

and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.
5.3 Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrving amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exdsts, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to

determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carryving amount, the carrving amount of the asset is reduced to its

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrving amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrving amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior vears. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.

54  Investments
The investments made by the company are classified for the purpose of measurement into the following category.
At amortized cost
Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intention and ability to hold onto until maturity are initially measured at
cost and at subsequent reporting dates measured at amortized cost using the effective vield method.
5.5 Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis except items in transit, which are
valued at cost accumulated to balance sheet date. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving store spares

based on the management best estimate.
5.6  Stockin trade

Stock in trade have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV) except waste, which is valued at net realizable value. Cost

is determined as follows:

Raw material - At weighted average cost

Work in process and finished goods - Cost of material and proportionate manufacturing overheads
Stock in transit - At cost accumulated to the balance sheet date

Scrap and Crush of pipes - Net realizable value

Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving stocks based on the management's best estimates.

5.7 Trade debts

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initiallv at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing component in which case such are recognized at fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method.
5.8  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and bank balances.
5.9 Borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost, less attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up
bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the profit or

loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

5.10 Revenue recognition

= According to the core principles of IFRS-15, the company recognizes the revenue from sale when the company satisties a performance
obligation (at a point of time) by transferring promised goods to customers being when the goods are dispatched to customers. Revenue

is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales

returns and discounts.
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Income from different sources other than above is recognized on the following basis

- Interest income is recognized on the basis of constant periodic rate of return.
- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established i.e. the book closure date of the investee
company declaring the dividend.

- Rental income is recognized in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

= Unrealized gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’ are

included in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

= Unrealized gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as ‘fair value through profit or loss” are included in profit

5.11

5.12

or loss in the period in which they arise.
Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit
or loss on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financdial asset.

Amortized Cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flow represents solely pavments of principal and interest are
measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these finandal assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or
loss arising on derecognition are recognized directly in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the finandial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or assets that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment

that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value and subsequent to initial recognition changes in fair value of these financial
assets are normally recognized in profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss when the
Companv’s right to receive pavment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments
in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the

derecognition of the investment.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and received respectively.
These financial assets and Labilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Anv gain or loss

on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset. Assets or
liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements imposed by the Government are not
the financial instruments of the Company.

Financial Liabilities

Finandial labilities are recognized at the time when the Companv becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed on profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

vield method.

A financial lability is derecognized when the obligation under the hability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,

and the difference in respective carrving amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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5.13 Impairment
Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses assodiated with its financial assets. The Company applies the
simplified approach to recognize lifetime expected credit losses for trade debts, due from customers and contract assets. The Company
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors spedific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Company may also consider a finandial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A

financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Non-Financial Assets

The carrving amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An
impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of
disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). An impairment loss is
reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrving amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined, net of deprediation or

amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Off setting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and onlv the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

5.14 Dividends

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a lability in the finandial statements in the period in which such dividends are

declared and approved by the shareholders.
5.15 Staff retirement benefits-gratuity

The company has adopted IAS 19, (Revised) "Employee Benefits". The amendments in the revised standard require the company to
eliminate the corridor approach and recognize all actuarial gains and losses (now called 'remeasurements’, that result from the
remeasurement of defined benefits obligations and fair value of plan assets at the balance sheet date) in other comprehensive income as
thev occur, immediately recognize all past service costs and replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest

amount that is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefits liability [ asset.

The company had operated an unfunded gratuity scheme covering for all its permanent employees who have attained the minimum

qualifying period for entitlement to the gratuity.

There was only one emplovee entitled for gratuity, therefore the management believed that it is unreasonable to conduct actuarial

valuation as required by IAS 19 "(Revised) Emplovee Benefits".

All other emplovees are hired on contractual basis and Company is not offering any gratuity benefit to contractual emplovees.

5.16 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the company under presumptive / final tax regime at the
applicable tax rates and remaining income streams chargeable at current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime after taking into

account tax credit and tax rebates available, if any. The charge for current tax includes any adjustment to past years liabilities.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary differences at the reporting date between tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrving amounts for financial reporting purposes after considering, the average effective rate of tax / enacted tax
rate.Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at enacted tax rate

that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Levy
Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount paid / payable in excess of the
calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not adjustable against future income tax lability is classified as levy in

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

5.17 Trade and other payable

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods

and services received, whether or not invoiced to the Company.
5.18 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, and itis
probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of obligation.
5.19 Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, except those covered by forward contracts, which are stated at contracted rates. Foreign currency transactions are translated into
Pak Rupee at the rates prevailing at the date of transaction except for those covered by forward contracts, which are translated at
contracted rates. Non monetary items are translated into Pak Rupee on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are

determined. Exchange differences are included in income currently.
5.20 Related parties

Transaction with related parties are priced on an arms length basis determined in accordance with comparable uncontrolled price method.

6 Restatement

During the vear the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) have withdrawn the Techmical Release 27 "IAS 12, Income
Taxes (Revised 2012)" and issued guidance - "[AS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes". The said
guidance requires certain amounts of tax paid under minimum tax (which is not adjustable against future income tax liability) and final
tax regime to be shown separately as a levy instead of showing it in current tax.

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements retrospectively in accordance with the requirement of
International Accounting Standard (IAS 8) — "Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. There has been no effect
on the statement of finandal position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and earning per share as a result of

this change.

Amount in Rupees
After
lIl-Iad tlfere been ;1:1 Impact of Change in itfmotrpfar:ﬁng
change in -a.(:COIIIl g Accgmﬁ;ﬂg Policies E- ect oI C a-IlgE
policies in accounting
policies
Effect on Statement of Profit or Loss 2023
Profit/ (loss) before levies and income tax | 100,582,462 | -] 100,582,462 |
Levies | -] (17,099,019)] (17,099,019)|
Profit/ (loss) before income tax | 100,582,462 | (17,099,019)] 83,483,444
Income tax expense | (11,868,243)| 17,099,019 | 5,230,776 |
Profit/(loss) for the year | 88,714,219 | -] 88,714,219 |
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7 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2024 2023

Number of shares

2,603,335 2,603,335

2,396,665 2,396,665

180 180

9,971,820 9,971,820
14,972,000 14,972,000
(14,000 (14,000)
14,958,000 14,958,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in
cash

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/= each fully paid for
consideration of amounts outstanding against

secured loans

Right shares issued of Rs. 10 each for cash in

ratio of 2 for 1 share

Right shares issued to underwriters

Less: Unpaid amount in respect of shares
allotted to Federal Chemical and Ceramics
Corporation (Pvt) Limited.

43

2024 2023
Rupee

26,033,350 26,033,350
23,966,650 23,966,650
1,800 1,800
99,718,200 99,718,200
149,720,000 149,720,000
(140,000) (140,000)
149,580,000 149,580,000

7.1 The shareholders' are entitled to receive all distributions to them including dividend and other entitlements in the form of bonus and right

shares as and when declared by the company. All shares carry "one vote" per share without restriction. There is no movement in share capital

during the year.

Note
8 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - gross 8.1
8.1 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - gross
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment at the beginning of
the vear
Arised during the year
Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation on
revalued assets
9 LONG TERM FINANCING
Secured
Government loan 2.1

9.1

Less : Current portion shown under current liabilities

2024 2023
Rupee
245,361,165 251,793,507
245,361,165 251,793,507
251,793,507 155,027,863
- 100,600,985
(6,432,342) (3,835,341)
245,361,165 251,793,507
32,991,000 32,991,000
(32,991,000) (32,991,000)

The loan was repavable in four half-vearly installments commenced one vear after the date of disbursement to the company (i.e.

June 17, 1992) and subject to an interest @ 11% (SBP rate prevailed at the time of agreement) as agreed with the management. Itis

secured against bank guarantee provided by the directors which is secured against personal marketable securities of directors. The

entire amount of the loan stands outstanding, overdue and pavable to Privatization Commission of Pakistan.

Note
10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors
Accrued liabilities 10.1
Advances from customers 10.2
Adwvance Rent
Interest free demand deposits (Security Deposits against rent) 10.3
Privatization comumnission, finance division 10.4

10.1

It includes amount payable to directors and associates amounting to Rs.

salaries pavable and other expenses.

2024 2023
Rupee

3,941,952 3,465,542
75,237,878 72,335,458
1,054,505 1,263,526
448,285 19,481
877,200 759,200
10,000,000 10,000,000
91,559,820 87,843,207

37,202,464 (June 30, 2023: Rs.33,539,119. ) against the
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10.2 Advance received from customer is recognised as revenue when the performance obligation in accordance with the policy is

satisfied. Revenue for an amount of Rs. 518,955 (2023:Rs. 206,202 ) has been recognised in current year in respect of advances

from customers at the beginning of period.

10.3 This interest free demand deposit is not kept into separate bank account.

10.4 It represents unsecured, interest free advance received from Privatization Comumission Finandial Division, Islamabad in October

1992 for payment to workers on account of golden hand shake.

Note 2024 2023
11 ACCRUED INTEREST / MARKUP Rupee
Interest / markup on:
Long term financing 113,911,143 110,282,133
113,911,143 110,282,133
Note 2024 2023
12 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Rupee
From related parties and directors - unsecured
Related parties 12.1 23,176,509 22,726,509
Directors 12.2 20,548,797 22,129,131
Book over draft - unsecured 12.3 2,673,299 1,990,982
46,398,605 46,846,622
12.1 This amount is pavable to Mrs. Parveen shaffi and Mr. Asif Shaffi. The loan is payable to them on their demand, therefore, the
loan is clubbed in short term borrowings and classified under current Habilities. The loan is interest free and unsecured.
12.2 These are interest free loans payable on demand of directors. These loans were provided and utilized to meet company's working
capital requirement.
12.3 This represents book overdraft due to issuance of cheques in excess of balances in bank accounts.
Note 2024 2023
13 PROVISION FOR TAXATION - NET Rupee
Opening balance 17,099,018 5,401,034
Add: Provision for the vear 31 9,501,407 17,099,019
Less: Paid / adjusted during the year (17,099,019) (5,401,034)
9,501,406 17,099,018
14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) had appointed an inspector to investigate into the affairs of the
company under Section 231 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The inspector has submitted report on his findings to
the SECP. The report concluded that the matter may be referred to FER being the relevant authority to probe into the matter
under the Benami Transactions ( Prohibition ) Act, 2017. Subsequently, The Company filed an appeal with SECP dated June
21,2023, The appeal was declined by Appellate Bench Registry of SECP as it was not maintainable based on the fact that the
impugned investigation report was an administrative direction and the same is not penal in nature. However, SECP issued show
cause notice regarding misstatement of financdials statements from the year 1999 till year end June 30,2003 due to non compliance
with the requirements of IAS 38 and penalty of Rs.500,000 was imposed on the company in an order dated November
21,2023.Copmany filed an appeal in appelate tribunal against the order and status of the case is pending.

Title of plot of land of the company situated at Islamabad is in dispute. The company has started negotiations with CDA. As a
result, company has conunitted to pay outstanding dues to CDA for the leasehold land. CDA has not confirmed the amount

therefore the amount of the obligation can not be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Privatization Comunission of Pakistan had filed a suit in honorable Islamabad High Court, C.0O.S No 07/2002,against the
company for recovery of amount repavable to the Privatization commission against principal amount of Government loan
assumed at time of privatization of Rs.32,991,000 along with the markup thereon amounting to Rs.113,911,143 aggregating to
Rs.146,902,143. However legal advisor confirmed outstanding amount of Rs. 159,381,662, During vear 2020, the case was
dismissed because no one tendered appearance on behalf of Plaintiff before the Court on the day of hearing. However appeal was
filed by Privatization Commission to restore the case. The Appeal was accepted by the Islamabad High Court, written statements
were filed by the both parties and the now the same is at evidence stage, wherein evidence is being recorded of both defendants .

Due to ongoing dispute with the Privatization Commission on various issues the amount is yet to be finalized.

Written Petition (No.2417/2020) & Written Petition (No. 151/2023) has been filed against the cancellation of the plot allotted to
Pakistan PVC Limited by Gadoon Amazon, which was cancelled by Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic Zone Development and
Management Company (Previously named as Sarhad Development Authority). Reply has been submitted by both defendants
and the case was fixed on 14th October 2023 for final arguments. However ,petition was dismissed by Peshawar High Court.The
company has filed an appeal in the Supreme Court through C.P.L.A No.546/2024 and 547/2024 and the case is not fixed for

hearing vet.
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Note 2024 2023
16 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Rupees
Held to maturity
Term Deposits account 16.1 815,845 538,377
815,845 538,377
16.1 Term Deposits account
Term deposit account 16.1.1 430,000 430,000
Add: Investment in term deposit 16.1.2 200,000 -
Add: Profit accrued to date 185,845 108,377
§15,845 538,377
Less: Maturity of term deposit - -
§15,845 538,377

16.1.1 During the year ended June 30, 2021, Funds were invested of Rs. 200,000 and 230,000 in Habib Bank Limited's Advantage
Account also termed as Term Deposit Account for a period of 10 vears and 5 vears with expected rate of profit/interest of 11.7%
and 8.13% per annum respectively. In case of premature encashment applicable profit for the holding period will be paid at the
lower of the booking date PLS rate and the prevailing PLS rate on encashment date. Penalty will be charged as per “Opportunity

loss ” for the remaining days to maturity. Profit accrued represents the profit from date of deposit till June 30, 2023.

16.1.2 During the year ended June 30, 2024, Funds were invested of Rs. 40,000 and 160,000 in Habib Bank Limited's Advantage Account
also termed as Term Deposit Account for a period of 5 vears with expected rate of profit/interest of 15.5% per annum respectively.
In case of premature encashment applicable profit for the holding period will be paid at the lower of the booking date PLS rate
and the prevailing PLS rate on encashment date. Penalty will be charged as per “Opportunity loss ” for the remaining days to
maturity. Profit accrued represents the profit from date of deposit till June 30, 2024

Note 2024 2023
17 STOCK IN TRADE mewmmmeemee QU P Q@S mmmmrrnmnnns
Raw and packing materials 471,678 964,925
Work in process 59,434 79,549
Finished goods 17.1 1,242,183 542,828
1,773,295 1,587,302

17.1 These include stock measured at net realizable value amounting to Rs. NIL (June 30, 2023 : Rs. NIL).
17.2 No item of stock in trade is pledged as securitv as at reporting date.

18 TRADE DEBTS

Local - unsecured considered good

- Pipes and fittings sales 4,128,574 3,405,437
- Water Sales 13,779 14,169
Local - unsecured considered Doubtful 284,560 -
4,426,913 3,419,606
Less:
Allownace for ECL on trade debts (284,560) -
4,142,353 3,419,606




19 LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances to:
Suppliers - considered good
Suppliers - considered doubtful

Emplovees-considered doubtful

Less:
Allownace for ECL on loans and advances

20 TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits

21 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Rent receivables

22 TAXREFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Sales tax refundable

Advance income tax

221 Advance income tax

Opening balance
Deducted during the vear

Adjusted against liability

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Cash at banks - current accounts

24 SALES
Local
PVC pipes and fittings
Less: Sale Tax

Less: Trade discounts and commission

Mineral water
Less: Sale Tax

Less: Trade discounts and commission

Total sales

Note

Note

Note

Note
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2024 2023
Rupee
1,096,832 923,606
171,544 -
91,792 -
1,360,168 923,606
(263,336) -
1,096,832 923,606
2024 2023
Rupee
100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
839,766 720,183
839,766 720,183
2024 2023
Rupee
357,425 622,701
6,479,305 6,170,000
6,836,730 6,792,701
2024 2023
Rupee
6,170,000 3,037,270
3,877,068 3,302,988
10,047,068 6,340,258
(3,567,763) (170,258)
6,479,305 6,170,000
10,000 10,000
21,414 64,889
31,414 74,889
11,498,731 15,402,862
(1,378,052) (2,003,995)
(2,464,837) (3,238,570)
7,655,842 10,160,297
1,386,323 1,508,061
(205,685) (221,054)
(68,705) (196,240)
1,111,933 1,090,767
8,767,775 11,251,064




25 COST OF S5ALES

25.1

25.2

Opening stock - finished good
Cost of goods manufactured
Qutside purchases

Closing stock- finished goods

Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing material consumed
Directors remuneration

Salaries, wages and benefits

Fuel and power

Stores and spares consumed

Repairs and maintenance

Postage and telephone

Rent, rates and taxes

Traveling, conveyance and vehicles running

Entertainment

Deprediation

Work in process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing material consumed
Opening stock
Purchases

Available for consumption

Closing stock

26 OTHER INCOME

From financial assets

Profit on term deposit account

Markup reversed against bank settlement

From other than financial assets

Rental income

27 DISTRIBUTION COST

27.1 Donation of Rs. 1,806,000 was given to The Indus Hospital. No Director has interest in any donee.

Salaries, wages and benefits
Rent, rates and taxes
Vehicles running

Traveling and convevance
Entertainment

Postage and telephone
Printing and stationery
Transportation cost
Donation

Deprediation

Note

25.1

25.2

154

Note

Note

27.1
154

50

2024 2023
Rupee
542,828 597,850
33,581,175 30,881,376
17,616 25,500
34,141,619 31,504,726
(1,242,183) (542,828)
32,899,436 30,961,898
4,089,615 7,296,098
750,000 750,000
14,053,811 12,428,365
3,989,788 3,404,544
102,898 50,125
1,023,988 724,341
137,547 130,302
3,750 5,000
2,088,791 1,393,270
417,095 308,121
6,903,777 4,413,448
33,561,060 30,903,613
79,549 57,311
(59,434) (79,549)
20,115 (22,238)
33,581,175 30,881,376
2024 2023
Rupee
964,925 173,928
3,596,368 8,087,095
4,561,293 8,261,023
(471,678) (964,925)
4,089,615 7,296,098
77,468 48,134
- 106,963,836
32,385,553 28,553,955
32,463,021 135,565,925
2024 2023
Rupee
1,086,363 973,380
115,120 36,720
1,871,775 1,501,508
434,398 164,452
707,203 501,798
79,892 31,139
30,250 22,290
41,820 89,290
1,806,000 1,844,000
95,030 60,751
6,267,851 5,225,328
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2024 2023
28 A Note 2024 2023
32 EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED wemrrmme—- R pees---omeeeeen
Earning/(Loss) for the vear - Rupees (4,822,928) 88,714,219
Weighted average number of shares 14,958,000 14,958,000
Earning/(Loss) per share - Rupees (0.32) 5.93

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share of the company for the year.
33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
The company has exposures to the following risks from its use of finandal instruments.

33.1 Credit risk
33.2 Liquidity risk
33.3 Market risk

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of company's risk management framework. The board is

also responsible for developing and monitoring the company’s risk management policies.
33.1 Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk

29 FI Credit risk is the risk of finandal loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a finandal instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits and short term
prepayments and cash and bank balances. Out of total finandial assets of Rs.5.114 million (June 30, 2023 : Rs.4.315 million),
financial assets which are subject to credit risk aggregate to Es. 5.082 million (June 30, 2023 : Rs.4.240 million). The carrving

amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is

as follows.
2024 2023
R
30 LI e
Trade debts 4,142,353 3,419,606
Trade deposits 100,000 100,000
Other receivables 839,766 720,183
Cash and bank balances 31,414 74,889
5,113,533 4,314,678
31 Ip The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by type of customer is as follows.
2024 2023
I,\ I.ll.r ees
Domestic 4,142,353 3,419,606

The aging of trade debtors at the balance sheet is as follows.

Gross debtors

2024 2023
I,\ I.ll.r ees

Mot past due 2,220,869 1,833,378
Past due 0 - 30 days 1,143,318 943,835
Past due 31 - 90 days 611,627 504,912
Past due 90 days - 1 year 166,539 137,482

More than one year 284,560 -
4,426,913 3,419,606

Alowance for ECL (284,560) -
4,142,353 3,419,606

Income taxed as separate block - -
(4,029,849) 11,868,243

31.3 During the year net deferred tax assets amounting to Rs. 10.904 million (2023: Rs.5.509) has not been recognized because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) arising due to taxable /(deductible) temporary differences are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment 16,907,073 18,676,648
Long term investments 53,895 31,429
Expected credit loss (158,890) -

Brought forward tax losses and minimum taxes (27,706,130) (24,216,628)

(10,904,052) (5,508,551)




52

33.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its finandial obligations as they fall due. The company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficent liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the companv's
reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and

excluding the impact of netting agreements.

2024
Carrving Contractual Six months  Six to twelve Two to five More than
Amount Cash flows or less months vears five vears
Rupees
Long term financing 32,991,000 32,991,000 32,991,000 - - -
Short term
borrowings 46,398,605 46,398,605 46,398,605 - - -
Accrued interest /
markup 113,911,143 113,911,143 113,911,143 - - -
Trade and other
payables 90,057,030 90,057,030 90,057,030 - = =
Total 283,357,778 283,357,778 283,357,778 - - -
2023
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve Two to five More than
Amount Cash flows or less months years five years
Rupees
Long term financing 32,991,000 32,991,000 32,991,000 - - -
Short term
borrowings 46,846,622 46,846,622 46,846,622 - - -
Accrued interest /
markup 110,282,133 110,282,133 110,282,133 - - -
Trade and other
pavables 86,560,200 86,560,200 86,560,200 - - -
Total 276,679,955 276,679,955 276,679,955 - - -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark up rates effective as

at June 30, 2024. The rates of mark up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements.

33.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the finandial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the
market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities,

supply and demand of securities, and liquidity in the market. The company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.

Currency risk
Exposure to currency risk

The company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, borrowing and import of raw material and stores that are denominated

in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the company. The company has not exposed to anv currency risk.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposures arises from short and long term borrowings from bank and term
deposits and deposits in PLS saving accounts with banks. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the company's

interest bearing financial instrument is as follows.

2024 2023
Rupees.
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 630,000 430,000
Finandial liabilities 32,991,000 32,991,000

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a

change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss account.
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carryving value of all finandal instruments reflected in the financial statements approximate to their fair values. Fair value is

determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.
Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financdial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors spedific to the individual finandial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the

market. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk as it hold financial instruments based commeodity prices.

34 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business, however, practical difficulties with this regard are being faced by the management due to liquidity crisis, small
market share and huge losses. The board of directors monitor the return on capital and the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders while
due to heavy losses no dividend has been declared since several past years. There were no changes to the company's approach to capital

management during the vear and the company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

35 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The following table shows the carryving amounts and fair values of financial assets and labilities. The fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value is shown below. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value as

the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying amount Carrying amount
2024 2023
) Fair value Fair value through
Fair value
. 3 through other At amortized | Fair value through other
At amortized cost | through profit or . ) )
loss comprehensive cost profit orloss comprehensive
income income
Rupees
Financial Assets
Long term investments 815,845 - - 538,377 - -
Trade Debt 4,142,353 - - 3,419,606 - -
Other receivables 839,766 - - 720,183 - -
Cash and bank balances 31,414 - - 74,889 - -
5,829,378 - - 4,753,055 - -
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Financial liabilities

Trade and other pavables 90,057,030 - - 86,560,200 - -

Unclaimed Dividend 45,980 - - 45,980 - -

Accrued interest [ markup 113,911,143 - - 110,282,133 - -

Short term borrowings 46,398,605 - - 46,846,622 - -

Current portion of long term . .

financing 32,991,000 - - 32,991,000 - -
283,403,758 - - 276,725,935 - -

The basis for determining fair values is as follows:
Interest rates used for determining fair value:

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government vield curve at the reporting date plus
an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assets are fixed rate instriuments, there is no significant difference in market rate

and the rate of instrument, fair value significantly approximates to carrving value.
35.1 Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyzes financial assets that are measured at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as

follows

- Level 1 : Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and labilities;
- Level 2 : Observable inputs; and
- Level 3 : Unobservable inputs.

The Company held the following financial assets at fair value:

| Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rupees
30-Jun-24

At fair value through profit or loss

30-Jun-23

At fair value through profit or loss

35.2 Determination of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosuires require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities.

36 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The company has related party relationship with its directors and key management personnel. Remuneration given to chief executive,
directors and executives are in accordance with their terms of employment as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements. Following are

the balances of and transaction with related parties.

Name Basis of relationship Percentage of shareholding
Mr. Arif Shaffi Director 2.51%
Mrs. Parveen Shaffi Close Family Member N/A
Mr. Muhammad Shaffi Director 0.12%
Mz. Adeel Shaffi Director 0.02%
Mr. Asif Shafi CFO N/A
2024 2023
Related parties Nature of transactions Rupee
Mr. Arif Shaffi Loan Receipts 20,000 -
Loan Payments 1,108,134 -
Mr. Muhammad Shaffi Loan Receipts 1,732,000 3,504,000
Loan Payments 2,224.200 242,500
Mr. Adeel Shaffi Loan Receipts - 15,200,000
Loan Payments - 850,000
Mr. Asif Shafi Loan Receipts 450,000 -

Loan Payments - -
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2024 2023
Balances with related parties Rupee
Short term borrowing from Mr. Arif Shaffi 219,859 1,307,993
Short term borrowing from Mrs. Parveen Shaffi 20,835,901 20,835,901
Short term borrowing from Mr. Muhammad Shaffi 4,364,990 4,857,190
Short term borrowing from Mr. Adeel Shatfi 15,963,948 15,963,948
Short term borrowing from Mr. Asif Shafi 2,340,608 1,890,608
43,725,306 44,855,640
37 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS TOTAL
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Basic 999,996 999,996 999,996 999,996 1,999,992 1,999,992
House rent 449,998 449,998 449,998 449,995 899,996 599,996
Others 50,006 50,006 50,006 50,006 100,012 100,012
1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Nuunber of 1 1 2 2 3 3
persons

37.1 Chief executive of the company is provided with free use of company maintained car. No employee of the company falls under the

definition of executive as defined in the Companies Act 2017,

38 PLANT CAPACITY

" Budgeted capacity " Actual production
2024 2023
At Gharo Rupee
PVC Resin - tons 25,000 - -
Compounds 100% - tons 1,500 - -
PVC leather cloth and plastic sheets - 22,144,500 - -
At Islamabad
PVC pipes and fittings - meters 7,751,808 133,462 287,973
Processing of water - Gallons 900,000 41,200 49,884

The budgeted capacity at Gharo is from the time of ceasure of production and can only be re-assessed when production resumes at
the facility.

The company has ceased the production at Gharo Plant since 1995.

The lower level of production of PVC pipes, fittings and water is due to unavailability of banking finance.

39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2024 2023
Number of employees worked at June 30 41 41
Average number of employees worked during the year 44 49

40 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There are no reportable events after the statement of financial position date.
41 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 21, 2024 by the board of directors of the company.
42 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

(M m— A
Arif Shaffi Mohammad Shaffi Asif Shaffi
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

As At June 30, 2024

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
277 1 100 10,321
112 101 500 39,9586

47 501 1,000 42,730
a4 1,001 5,000 241,702
14 5,001 10,000 119,209
8 10,001 15,000 106,660
B 15,001 20,000 100,870
2 20,001 25000 48,500
1 35,001 40,000 38,000
1 40,001 45000 41,500
1 50,001 55000 55,000
1 65,001 70,000 65,690
1 75,001 60,000 78,500
1 95,001 100,000 100,000
1 145,001 150,000 149,500
1 175,001 180,000 180,000
1 260,001 265,000 261,300
1 275,001 280,000 275,500
1 295,001 300,000 300,000
1 365,001 370,000 370,000
1 450,001 455 000 454 320
1 375,001 380,000 376,450
1 380,001 385,000 381,100
1 425 001 430,000 425 602
1 735,001 740,000 737,640
1 9,970,001 9,975,000 9,971,820

570 14,972,000




Categories of Shareholders
As at June 30, 2024

2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 423,301 2.8273%
and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies, 0 0.0000%
undertakings and related
parties. (Farent Company)

2.3.3 NIT and ICP 4,250 0.0284%

2.3 .4 Banks Development 924,838 6.1771%
Financial Institutions, Mon
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies 24 220 0.1618%
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 0 0.0000%
Funds
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% 9,971,820 B6.6031%
or mare

2.3.8 General Public
a. Local 3.091,192 20 6465%
b. Foreign 0 0.0000%

2.3.9 Others ({to be specified)

- Joint Stock Companies 530,215 3.5414%
- Investment Companies 1.625 0.0109%
- Abandoned Properties 539 0.0036%

- Forigen Companies 9.971.820 B6.6031%
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PAKISTAN PVC LIMITED
Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2024

No. of
Sr. No. |Name Shares Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 MR. ARIF SHAFFI 376,450 2.5144%
2 MRS, SAIRA SHAFFI 12,850 0.0B58%
3 MR MOHAMMAD SHAFFI 17.500 0.1169%
4 MR MOHAMMAD 1QBAL 2,500 0.0167%
5 MR. ADEEL SHAFFI 2,500 0.0167%
B MR. ABDULLAH SHAFFI (CDC) 2,500 0.0167%
7 MR. ARSHAD JAVAID (CDC) 9,001 0.0601%
Executives: 381,100 2.5454%
Public Sector Companies & Corporations:
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 949,058 6.3389%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:
Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)
1 EMNSENA HOLDING FZC 9971820 66.6031%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

Sr. No. Name Sale Purchase

Dear Sir, please check at your end
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Folio No. | CDC Account No.
Participant | Account
l. D. No.
PROXY FORM
I/We of
being a member / members of PAKISTAN PVC
LIMITED hereby appoint (name) of

(Full address) another member of the company or

failing him / her (name) of

(Full address) another member

of the company as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/us behalf,
at the 61°° Annual General Meeting of the company to be held at Shaffiabad, Gharo,
Distt. Thatta on Friday, October 18, 2024 and at every adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of

Signature on
Rupee One
Revenue Stamp

(Signature should agree with the specimen
signature registered with the company)

Important

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the
company entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her. No
person shall act as proxy, who is not a member.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member (s) or by
his/her attorney duly authorized in writing. If the member is a corporation, its
common seal should be affixed to the instrument.

3. This Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the company’s
Registered Office, at Shaffiabad, Gharo, Distt. Thatta, not less than 72 hours
before the time of holding the meeting.

4. The Proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
Meeting.

5. In case of individual CDC Account holders, attested copy of CNIC or passport (as
the case may be) of the beneficial owner will have to be provided with this Proxy.

6. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors Resolution/Power of Attorney
with specimen signature of the nominee shall be submitted along with this Proxy.
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Folio No. | CDC Account No.

Participant | Account
l. D. No.

The Companies (E-voting) Regulations, 2016

“Twe oo of o in the districtof ................... being member
of Pakistan PVC Limited and a holder of ................ Ordinary Shares as per Register Folio
NO. .o, hereby opt for e-voting through intermediary and hereby consent the
appointment of execution officer ..................... as proxy and will exercise e-voting as per
the Companies (E-voting) Regulations, 2016 and hereby demand for poll for resolutions.

My secured email address is .............. , please send login details, password and electronic
signature through email.

Signature should agree
With the specimen signature
Registered with the Company

Signature of Witness Signature of Witness
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